ENDF-16/

ANCR-1044 ENDF-161 UC-34

²³⁵ U RESOLVED RESONANCE PARAMETERS FOR ENDF/B, VERSION III

J.R. Smith and R.C. Young

Aerojet Nuclear Company

NATIONAL REACTOR TESTING STATION Idaho Falls, Idaho - 83401

DATE PUBLISHED-DECEMBER, 1971

U. S. ATOMIC ENERGY COMMISSION

IDAHO OPERATIONS OFFICE UNDER CONTRACT AT(10-1)-1375

Printed in the United States of America Available from National Technical Information Service U. S. Department of Commerce 5285 Port Royal Road Springfield, Virginia 22151 Price: Printed Copy \$3.00; Microfiche \$0.95

— LEGAL NOTICE -

This report was prepared as an account of work sponsored by the United States Government. Neither the United States nor the United States Atomic Energy Commission, nor any of their employees, nor any of their contractors, subcontractors, or their employees, makes any warranty, express or implied, or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or usefulness of any information, apparatus, product or process disclosed, or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights.

Physics TID-4500

²³⁵U RESOLVED RESONANCE PARAMETERS FOR ENDF/B, VERSION III

J. R. Smith R. C. Young

AEROJET NUCLEAR COMPANY

Date Published -- December 1971

PREPARED FOR THE U. S. ATOMIC ENERGY COMMISSION IDAHO OPERATIONS OFFICE UNDER CONTRACT NO. AT(10-1)-1375

ABSTRACT

A new set of resolved resonance parameters for ²³⁵ U has been derived for inclusion in Version III of the Evaluated Nuclear Data File B. Single-level parameters plus a complementary smooth file describe the cross sections between 7 and 82 eV. The parameters were developed by simultaneously fitting three sets of fission cross section data and one set each of total and capture cross sections. The Automated Cross Sections Analysis Program (ACSAP) was used in the fitting.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABSTR	ACT	ii
I.	Introduction	1
II.	Preparation of Data	2
	1. Selection of Data Sets	2
	2. Energy Normalization	4
	3. Cross Section Normalization	5
	4. Resolution	6
III.	Fitting of Data	8
	1. The Automated Cross Section Analysis Program (ACSAP).	8
	2. Derivation of Resonance Parameters ,	9
	3. Construction of Smooth Files (ENDF/B File 3)	10
IV.	Results • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	12
v.	Acknowledgments	14
VI.	References	15
VII.	Tables	16
VIII.	Figures	24
APPENI	DIX A - Plots of the Fit to the Principal Data Sets	27
APPENI	DIX B - Estimates of Error	52

x

I. INTRODUCTION

Uranium-235 has long been the principal nuclear fuel, and the standard against which other reactor fuels are compared. The resonances of 235 U are closely spaced and subject to severe distortions in shape due to the phenomenon of interference in the fission process. This combination of importance and resonance complexity makes 235 U the most challenging of all resonance analysis problems. The present analysis was undertaken by assignment from the Cross Sections Evaluation Working Group, for the purpose of revising and extending the ENDF/B resolved resonance file for 235 U. The task has two aspects: Selection and normalization of data sets, and fitting the selected data sets with a consistent set of single-level parameters. These two parts of the problem are about equal in complexity and importance.

II. PREPARATION OF DATA

1. Selection of Data Sets

There is a great wealth of data from many measurements of the cross sections ²³⁵ U. It would be impractical to fit all the available data. On the other hand, no one experiment is so definitive that it completely dominates the field of view. The following data sets were selected for prime consideration for the reasons given. As noted, there are some problems with each data set.

1. Simultaneous capture and fission measurements by deSaussure et al.[1]. These data were used principally to indicate the ratio of capture to fission for the resonances. The strength of this experiment is that it measured the two most important partial cross sections of 235 U simultaneously, under the same conditions of resolution and background. Moreover, care was taken to correct for such effects as backgrounds, resonance self-shielding, and scattering in the fission chamber. The resolution, however, was poorer than that of the other data used in this analysis. The most severe problem with these data is that the resolution was evidently substantially different from that to be deduced from the experimental parameters given by the authors in their report. Moderation time for neutrons slowed down in the moderator is probably responsible for most of the resolution problem. The moderation time contributes a width to the resolution function proportioned to $E^{-\frac{1}{2}}[2]$ During most of the present analysis this effect was simulated by an ad hoc adjustment of the resolution function. An asymmetric resolution function was used, and the flight path uncertainty was increased at low energies to give a resolution that would allow the deSaussure data to be fit by the same parameters as fit the higher resolution data sets. Subsequent studies indicated that this treatment was equivalent to a moderation time of 1.5µ sec

2

E (eV)

2. Total cross section measurements of Michaudon. These data were obtained at liquid nitrogen temperatures and fairly high resolution. They turned out to give, in most cases, the best indication of the total widths of the resonances. The data were available only as cross section versus energy, with results from several samples mixed together. Total cross sections are measured from transmissions of samples, and the analysis should really be performed on the transmission data for each sample. In many resonances the partial cross sections did not add to give the total cross section properly. It is suspected that the total cross sections were at least partially responsible for the discrepancy. This problem is discussed further in the section on normalization of data.

(2)

(3)

- 3. Fission cross sections measured by Blons et al. on the Saclay linear accelerator. These data were obtained at liquid nitrogen temperature, with resolution similar to that of Michaudon's total cross section measurement. This low temperature in effect gives the Blons data the best resolution of all the fission data. The principal problem is that below about 35 eV the normalization becomes progressively more erratic because of difficulty in interpreting the backgrounds in the presence of a 10 B filter used to eliminate low energy overlap neutrons. Normalization by a fourth order polynomial in energy adjusted these data to match the deSaussure normalization.
- 4. Fission cross sections measured by Cao et al. on the linear accelerator at C.B.N.M. (Geel). These data are the highest resolution of the room temperature measurements of σ_f for ²³⁵U. They are useful for comparing with the Blons data to confirm the effectiveness of the Doppler corrections in the analysis code. They go to a lower energy than the Blons data, 6 eV versus 17 eV. However, the Cao data have a fairly broad statistical spread, and are troubled by erratic background corrections in the vicinity of resonances in filters used to determine backgrounds.

In addition, the total cross section data of Shore and Sailor were used for display purposes to observe the fit below 2 eV, but did not figure directly in the fitting.

2. Energy Normalization

It seems almost inevitable that experiments on different machines will show slightly different energy scales. To compare energy scales, large scale plots of fission data were made over 15 resonances from 7 eV (where the Cao data begin) to 100 eV. The Blons and Cao data showed energy differences small enough to be ignored. The Michaudon data, which were not obtained until after the energy comparison had been made, also fit the same energy scale. It is likely that the Blons and Cao measurements were normalized in energy to the Michaudon data, which predate them. The deSaussure data indicated a slight shift, which increased with energy, as compared to the other data sets. Since the European data agreed, and used flight paths that were roughly twice as long as that of the deSaussure experiment, the latter data were shifted in energy to bring them into agreement. An energy shift, linear in energy, was derived from a least squares fit to the apparent displacement of resonances. The constants for this shift are given in Table I.

The shifted deSaussure data agreed well enough with the other data to allow simultaneous fitting. However, as the analysis progressed, it became apparent that the data had been overcorrected below about 8 eV and above 60 eV. The constant term in the correction equation is too large. A straight correction of about 0.1% would probably be prefereable. As a matter of fact, the plots of the deSaussure data, shown in Appendix A, used the unnormalized data below 8 eV.

(5)

3. Cross Section Normalization

Since this analysis covered only the resonance region above 1.0 eV, it was necessary to normalize all data to the existing ENDF/B-II low energy file. The low energy file is in turn normalized to the IAEA evaluation of $2200 \text{ m/sec}^{(6)}$. Of the principal data sets, only the deSaussure measurements go as low as 1 eV. These data were raised by 1.5% to bring the integral from 0.45 eV to 1.0 eV into better agreement with that from the ENDF/B low energy file. The calculated difference in the capture integrals was 2.4%; nevertheless, the capture was raised only 1.5% in order that deSaussure's α ratios might be preserved.

A series of partial integrals of the Blons, Cao, and deSaussure fission data were calculated as part of the normalization study. The energy intervals were chosen such that their boundaries fell in the valleys between resonances to minimize boundary errors. Ratios of the partial integrals from each data set to the others were calculated and compared. A plot of these is shown in Figure 1. The effects pointed out by Krebs (7) and Ribon (8) are evident. The ratios between data sets are not constant over the energy range of the experiments. The most severe departures seem to be associated with the use of filters to determine backgrounds in the linear accelerator experiments. The Cao data are severely distorted in the vicinity of resonances in the notch filters used for background determination. deSaussure also discusses such problems in his experiment, but the data he supplied for the present analysis had been at least partially corrected in the vicinity of the 28 eV resonance in cadmium. The Blons data progressively fall off in relative magnitude below about 40 eV. This is apparently associated with the decreasing transmission of the boron filter used to eliminate overlap neutrons. The distortions are associated with treatment of experimental backgrounds.

The Cao data were raised 7% to bring them into agreement with the renormalized deSaussure data. No attempt was made to normalize piece-wise in the vicinity of the distortions caused by the background filters. The Cao data were simply ignored in such regions. The Blons data, which already agreed well with the renormalized deSaussure data above 40 eV, were given an energy-dependent renormalization. The ratios of the incremental integrals from Blons data to the corresponding integrals from deSaussure's data were fitted with a fourth degree polynomial. The coefficients from the fit are listed in Table I. This polynomial

was then used to normalize the Blons data. The resulting correction ranged from about 19% at 18 eV to zero at 40 eV. The polynomial introduced some fluctuations of less than half a percent above 40 eV, but these were deemed to be of no consequence to the fit. This correction applies only to 100 eV. If applied above that energy, it would introduce severe fluctuations.

Total cross section data are in principal the easiest of all data to assign absolute values. It is consequently difficult not to favor the total cross section values when discrepancies arise between them and the sum of the partial cross sections. Nevertheless, there are discrepancies between the total and partial data that do not appear to be attributed completely to partial cross section normalization errors or to resolution effects. The total cross sections tend to go higher on the peaks than the sum of the partial measurements would indicate. Raising the partial cross section values would put them out of line with the low energy measurements to which they are normalized. Some of the effect is likely due to resolution differences, but this does not seem to be the answer to the disagreement over the broad resonances near 14 eV. Some of the discrepancy may arise from normalizations in the total cross section data. Michaudon used five samples in his experiment. Two of these were well calibrated, and served as the basis for normalization of all the data. Any error in this internormalization would tend to give the strong resonances an apparently different normalization from the weaker ones.

Since neither the total nor the partial cross sections seemed to be free from suspicion in the normalization discrepancy, a compromise was in order. The values of Γ_n^0 reported here represent averages from separate fits to the total and partial cross section data, using the same values for the total widths.

4. Resolution

For any shape analysis of resonance data to be meaningful, it is absolutely essential that the experimental resolution function be well understood. We have already mentioned the resolution problems encountered with the deSaussure data. Lesser difficulties were experienced with the other data sets. A thorough study of all the resolution problems of each experiment was not possible within the time allotted for this study. The resolution functions were adjusted so that all

data sets were well fit by the same parameters. The experimental resolutions assumed are summarized in Table II. It is possible that these detailed breakdowns may not be strictly correct, but the overall resolution functions should be reasonably close to reality.

The resolution parameters for Michaudon's total cross section data were left essentially as we understood them to be from Michaudon's report. The effect of the moderator, however, was introduced only as an uncertainty in flight path, without using the $g^{-\frac{1}{2}}$ term. The omission of this latter term may contribute a slight bias to the resonance widths we derived. However, these widths are in most cases in good agreement with those derived by Michaudon in his analysis, so the overall resolution functions should be fairly close. The total cross sections seemed to come closest to being matched by the theoretical resolution function. Therefore, the total widths are based mainly on the analysis of these data.

For both Blons' and Cao's fission data, a moderator contribution $\frac{2\mu \text{sec}}{\sqrt{\text{E(eV)}}}$ was added to the resolution function. In addition, a flight path uncertainty (moderator thickness in this case) of 5 cm was used for the Blons data rather than the theoretical 2 cm. The fact that more moderator effect was needed for the Blons fission data than for Michaudon's total data, measured on the same machine, suggests that the true source of the difference does not lie in the moderator at all. The impression is that fission experiments show lower resolution than total measurements on the same machine. This may be due to scattering of neutrons within or in the vicinity of the fission chamber. deSaussure et al. made corrections for this effect in their data, but the other experimenters do not seem to have done so.

III. FITTING OF DATA

1. The Automated Cross Section Analysis Program (ACSAP)

The principal computer code used in this evaluation was the Automated Cross Section Analysis Program (ACSAP). The program is described in detail elsewhere⁽⁹⁾. We give only a brief summary of its capabilities here. Either single-level or Reich-Moore multilevel parameters can be used in ACSAP. The fitting procedure is an iterative one. For each resonance to be fit, one to three points and a set of trial parameters are selected. The program adjusts the parameters to force the calculated cross section curve to pass through the selected points. When three points have been selected, it is possible to adjust the resonance energy Eo, the reduced neutron width $\Gamma_n^{\ o}$, and one other partial width, either the capture width $\Gamma\gamma$ or the fission width $\Gamma_f.$ Such an adjustment is termed a shape fit. When only one point has been selected for a resonance, only one partial width can be adjusted. Since such points are usually chosen near the peak of a resonance, this adjustment is referred to as a peak fit. The peak fit is very useful for two special circumstances. The first is the case where a resonance is too poorly resolved to perform a reliable shape fit. The second is the case where the resonance energy and total width have been determined by a previous shape fit, and it is next desired to adjust the partial widths to fit one or more sets of partial cross sections data. After ACSAP has finished adjusting parameters, it will upon request plot a calculated curve, appropriately broadened for Doppler and resolution effects, along with the corresponding experimental data. These calculation and plotting procedures may be repeated at will in the same run so that several sets of data may be plotted and compared with the theoretical curves, each one broadened according to the actual conditions under which the data were taken.

These calculating and plotting features proved as useful in this evaluation as the actual fitting routines. They were used directly to examine sets of experimental data and compare them to existing sets of parameters. During the course of the fitting, the repetitive plotting capabilities made it possible routinely to follow the effects parameter changes had upon all the sets of data used.

2. Derivation of Resonance Parameters

Single level parameters were derived by fitting the experimental data by means of the automatic iterative fitting features of ACSAP. One set of data was chosen as prime set, and one to three points per resonance selected to represent these data. After ACSAP had adjusted parameters so the calculated curve would pass through these points, it calculated and plotted theoretical fits to all the experimental data sets, using the newly derived parameters. Visual inspection of the curves was the guide to modifying input for subsequent runs. Each of the five data sets was used as prime set at various times during the analysis. This procedure allowed detailed examination of the data sets to determine whether anomalies were common to several experiments or peculiar to one. It also allowed comparison of experiments as to consistency with resolution parameters indicated by their authors. From the principle of perversity of nature, it was deemed highly unlikely that any true resolution would be higher than that derived from the known properties of the experimental system. This criterion led to the acceptance of Michaudon's total cross section measurements as the truest available indicator of the natural widths of most resonances. Exceptions to this rule were made in the cases of the 1.1 eV resonance, which Michaudon did not measure, several resonances distorted by the presence of impurities, and several others for which inter-sample normalization problems are suspected. On the whole, however, the most productive fitting sequence seemed to be to shape-fit the total data, peak-fit the deSaussure fission and capture data, and merge the parameters to maintain the total widths from the total data and the alpha values from deSaussure's data.

The only problem with this procedure is that it can really be done only over a very limited energy region. The present analysis was carried well beyond the region where shape fitting can be considered accurate. A pure area analysis, on the other hand, becomes impractical for 235 U, because of the close spacing and assymetry of the resonances. A fit to the peak of data with the same resolution function (deSaussure σ_f and σ_c), with the total width fixed, is comparable to an area fit of the same data. The combination of shape analysis of sets of data having different resolution functions, with peak fitting to the partial cross section data, partially overcomes some of the limitations inherent in the shape analysis approach.

3. Construction of Smooth Files (ENDF/B File 3)

Because the ²³⁵U resonances are asymmetric, it is not possible to get a good fit using a reasonable number of single-level resonance parameters alone. It may not even be possible using an unreasonable number. The ENDF/B format makes it possible to circumvent this problem by using an auxiliary file of pointwise data. These "smooth" data, when added to the cross sections calculated from the resonance parameters, yield the same overall cross section to be derived from a good multilevel fit.

ACSAP will upon request print and plot the differences between experimental points and the cross sections calculated from parameters. Such difference outputs were used in constructing the smooth files. In order to maintain proper α values, the deSaussure data were used as much as possible in constructing these different files. However, this ideal had to be abandoned above about 35 eV, as degraded resolution spread the influence of intrinsic resolution to energies significantly far from the resonances to which they apply.

In the present analysis, an effort was made to keep the smooth file small, sometimes by splitting a resonance into separate capture and fission resonances. Such efforts were not always successful, however, and the smooth file contribution remains substantial, particularly below 15 eV. The fact that there is less smooth file structure in the upper part of the resonance region is doubtless due to the fact that degraded resolution obscures the true resonance shapes at higher energies.

The treatment of the scattering file should be clarified. No scattering data were explicitly fit. The only constraints placed on the scattering cross sections were that they should be consistent with the resonance parameters, should match the low energy file at 1 eV, and should not go negative. A value of 11.5 b was used for the potential scattering cross section. This is the value used in the IAEA analysis of low energy cross section standards ⁽⁵⁾, and is consistent with the recent determination of 11.7 barns by Poortmans et al. ⁽¹⁰⁾

Scattering cross sections computed from the single-level parameters are a first approximation to the true values, but are faulty on two counts. In the first place, scattering is intrinsically a multilevel process, and the singlelevel approximation gives erroneous results. It may even go negative under some circumstances (11). In the second place, any finite set of parameters will show an imbalance at both ends of its energy region, because interference terms extend in energy infinitely far in both directions. These interference contributions tend to make scattering too low at the low energy end, and too high at the high energy end. To arrive at a balanced scattering estimate, a special scattering calculation was made, using the Reich-Moore multilevel formula $^{(12)}$. For this calculation, the single-level parameters described herein were used, but the negative energy resonance was adjusted in Γ_n^o to give the same cross section at 1 eV (12.9 b) as found in the low energy file. To balance the upper end, a mock resonance file was generated to 110 eV by reflecting a 30 eV band of resonances around 80 eV. The difference between this calculation and the single-level prediction became the scattering smooth file. By means of an interpolation routine, the scattering smooth file was put on the same energy mesh as the total smooth file. The latter file was also compensated for the change in scattering. The scattering smooth file, when added to the scattering cross section given by the Version II parameters, therefore essentially yields a multilevel scattering cross section. This is still not the "true" scattering cross section, because spins are not assigned to the resonances. It does, however, seem to be the best available estimate.

IV. RESULTS

The final ENDF/B, Version III resolved resonance parameters for 235 U are shown in Table III. It should be kept in mind that these parameters are to be applied only between 1 and 82 eV. Resonances below 1 eV and above 82 eV are included only to aid continuity between energy regions, and have not been adjusted in the current investigation. The two resonances below 1 eV are those used in ENDF/B, Versions I and II, while the two resonances above 82 eV are from Blons. The parameters of the negative energy resonance are really no longer appropriate, since the current analysis used a different value for $\sigma_{\rm pot}$ than did Version I. The two resonances above 82 eV do not give an adequate description of the cross sections above that energy, because they ignore an unanalyzed bouquet of resonances between 82 and 87 eV. Nevertheless, these resonances should be left in the calculations because they were there when the current resonance parameters and smooth file were constructed.

Appendix A displays a series of plots representing the fit to all data sets analyzed between 1 and 82 eV. The contributions of the parameters alone are represented as a dashed line, while the complete cross sections, parameters plus smooth file, are given as solid lines. While no set of data is fit perfectly, the reason for departure from a given data set in a particular energy region will usually be evident from an examination of the fit to the other data sets over the same region. In Table IV is a comparison of cross section integrals from the fit and from the fission and capture data sets. Table V presents a similar comparison for total cross section data. The errors associated with the analysis are discussed in Appendix B.

The principal difference between the present file and previous ENDF/B files for ²³⁵U is that the present total widths are systematically narrower. This difference is not obvious for resonances that are either wide or poorly resolved, but is clear in a comparison of narrow, well-resolved resonances. This difference has its origin in the resolution problems with the ORNL-RPI measurements, which were the only data considered in the previous analysis. It may have a substantial effect in applications where self-shielding must be considered.

A word might be said concerning capture widths. These are expected to vary but slightly from an average value, following a chi-squared distribution with many degrees of freedom. Purists tend to become upset with sets of resonance parameters showing large variations in the capture widths. Experience gained during the present investigation has led to the conclusion that a large part of such variations may be due to resolution limitations. A resonance that appears to have twice the normal radiation width may in truth be a doublet, consisting of two resonances having normal widths. Moreover, the degradation in resolution with increasing energy may, if not properly accounted for, induce an apparent growth in the resonance widths at higher energies. These thoughts have guided the present fitting effort. Nevertheless, the emphasis has been on reproducing neutron cross sections, as opposed to deriving subtle conclusions concerning nuclear structure. Accordingly, the present file contains a few examples of what may be artificial radiation widths. In view of these considerations, it is not thought profitable to speculate on the number of degrees of freedom represented by the distribution in radiation widths.

This study has shown once again the central role that experimental resolution plays in resonance analysis. It is unfortunate that the present climate does not encourage the detailed study of resolution characteristics and background composition of the new machines. Since the principal points of disagreement between experiments seem to be traceable to problems with instrumental backgrounds and resolution, it would seem that such studies should be assigned the highest priority.

We feel that the present analysis provides a description of the ²³⁵U resonance cross sections that is about as good as the experimental data, and close to the quality that could be expected from a multilevel fit. An improved description would require improved experimental data. A remeasurement of the total cross section would be very advantageous, but only if it were made using a well-calibrated set of precision metal samples, at low temperatures, using high resolution that is well understood. Simultaneous measurements of capture and fission cross section at low temperature and high resolution would also be welcomed, though these would be more difficult to achieve. Meticulous attention to details such as resolution details, all backgrounds, scattering corrections, and self shielding corrections will be required if new measurements are to improve the present picture.

V. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

We would like to express our sincere appreciation for many beneficial discussions with Dr. Gerard deSaussure concerning details of his experiment and his experience with other data analyzed in the present study. We would also like to thank Messrs. Orval D. Simpson and Ferrol B. Simpson for many helpful discussions, and Messrs. James W. Codding and Neldon H. Marshall for expanding the capability of ACSAP for handling and analyzing large data sets.

VI. REFERENCES

- G. deSaussure et al., "Simultaneous Measurements of the Neutron Fission and Capture Cross Sections for U-235 for Incident Neutron Energies from 0.4 eV to 3 keV," AEC Report ORNL-TM-1804 (1967).
- (2) A. Michaudon, "Contribution a l'Etude par des Methodes du Temps de Vol de l'Interaction des Neutrons Lents Ave. 1'U-235," Report CEA-R2552 (1964)
- (3) J. Blons, H. Derrien, and A. Michaudon, "Measurements and Analysis of the Fission Cross Sections of U-235 and U-235 for Neutron Energies Below 30 keV," CONF-710301, Vol. 2, p. 829 (1971).
- M. G. Cao et al., "Fission Cross-Section Measurement on U-235," J. Nucl. Energy 22, 211 (1968).
- (5) F. J. Shore and V. L. Sailor, "Slow Neutron Resonances in U-235," Phys. Rev. <u>112</u>, 191 (1958).
- (6) G. C. Hanna et al., "Revision of Values for the 2200 m/sec Neutron Constants for Four Fissile Nuclides," Atomic Energy Review, Vol. <u>VII</u>, No. 4, p. 3 (1969).
- (7) J. Krebs et al., "Resonance Parameters of ²³⁵U up to 50 eV,"
 (7) CONF 710301, Vol. 1, p. 410 (1971). See also J. Krebs et al., "Method d'Analyse de Forme des Sections Efficaces des Noyaux Fissiles," Nuclear Data for Reactor, Helsinki 1970 (IAEA) Vol. 21, p. 789.
- (8) P. Ribon, "Evaluation Dan le Domaine des Resonances Pour les Noyaux de Masse Superieur a 220."
 Nuclear Data for Reactors, Helsinki 1970 (IAEA) Vol. 1, p. 571.
- (9) N. H. Marshall et al., "An Automated Cross Section Analysis Program (ACSAP)," AEC Report ANCR-1042 (1972).
- (10) F. Poortmans et al., "Scattering Cross Section of ²³⁵U below 100 eV., Determination of Fn and J of Resonances," Nuclear Data for Reactors, Helsinki 1970 (IAEA), Vol. 1, p. 449.
- (11) J. M. Otter, "Comment on the Calculation of the Scattering Cross Section for Multiple Resonances," Nucl. Sci. Engr. 28, 149 (1967)
- (12) C. W. Reich and M. S. Moore, "Multilevel Formula for the Fission Process," Phys. Rev. 111, 929 (1958).

VII. TABLES

TABLE I

DATA NURMALIZAT	ION
-----------------	-----

Data Set	Energy Change	Cross Section Normalization Factor
deSaussure Fission and Capture	∆E = .016100117E	1.015
Blons Fission	none	$1.73760475E + .001097E^{2}$ -1.086X10 ⁻⁵ E ³ + 3.9X10 ⁻⁸ E ⁴
Cao Fission	none	1.070
Michaudon Total	none	1.000
Shore Total	none	1.000

		ASS	SUMED FOR DOP	PLER AND RESOLUTI	ON BROADENING	
		deSaussure Fission and Ca	apture	Blons Fission	Cao Fission	Michaudon Total
	Instrument Flight Path (meters) Effective Temp. (⁰ K)	LINAC (RPI) 25.45 298		LINAC (Saclay) 50.07 96	LINAC (Geel) 60.58 300	LINAC (Saclay) 53.41 96
	Sample Thicknesses (barns/atom)					39.1 100.0 231.4 708.7 4460.
17	Flight Path Uncertainty (detector and moderator thicknesses) (cm)	4.1		'n	3.7 (below 4leV) 4.2 (above 4leV)	3.6
	K* (ev)	1.5+		2	2	0
	Resolution Shape	Asymmetric		Gaussian	Gaussian	Gaussian
	Accelerator Burst (u sec)	.25	.10	.05	.03 .08	as shown
	Channel width (u sec) (Energy range, ev)	2.56 (1-3) 1.28 (3-6) .64 (6-12) .32 (12-27)	.16 (63-82)	.4 (17-31) .2 (31-68) .1 (68-82)	.64 (47-8) .08 (30- .32 (8-26) .16 (26-43) 1.28 (43-47)	$\begin{array}{c} \text{B2}) \underbrace{\frac{\text{Chan.}}{1}}_{1} \underbrace{(1.3-7.5)}_{1.5} \underbrace{2}_{2} \\ .5 \\ (7.5-50) \\ .15 (50-82) \\ .1 \end{array}$
	* K is the moderation tim	e uncertainty	at leV. The	term K/⁄ <u>E(eV)</u> i	s included in the reso	lution width.
	+ During most of the anal vary from 6.4 cm at leV	ysis the moder to 4.1 cm abo	ation time ef ve 60 eV.	ffect was simulate	ed by letting the flig	ht path uncertainty

TABLE II

Table III

U-235 Resolved Resonance Parameters for ENDF/BrLTI

Resonance	Resonance	Total		Gamma-N-	Gamna-	
Energy (eV)	Spin	Width (eV)	<u>Gamma-N (eV)</u>	Nought (eV)	Gamma (eV)	<u>Gamma-F (eV)</u>
-1.4900E UO	3.5000E 00	2•3768E-01	3.6820E-03	3.0164E-03	2.7000E-02	2.0700E-01
2.9000E-01	3.5000E 00	1.3500E-01	3.0157E-06	5.6000E-06	3-6000E-02	9.9000E-02
1.1400E 00	3.5000E 00	1.5082E-01	1.5161E-05	1.4200E-05	3.4600E-02	1.1620E-01
2.0350E 00	3.5000E 00	4.4696E-02	7.6605E-06	5.3700E-06	3.4874E-02	9.8140E-03
2.9200E 00	3.5000E 00	2.2000E-01	4.8530E-06	2.8400E-06	2.0000E-02	2.0000E-01
3.1470E 00	3.5000E 00	1.3961E-01	2.2405E-05	1.2630E-05	3.3210E-02	1.0637E-01
3.6090E 00	3.5000E 00	8.4379E-02	4.5594E-05	2.4000E-05	3.3696E-02	5.0637E-02
4.8480E 00	3.5000E 00	3.9592E-02	6.0352E-05	2.7410E-05	3.5945E-02	3.5870E-03
5.4480E 00	3.5000E 00	9.0120E-02	3.3611E-06	1.4400E-06	6.0000E-02	3.0117E-02
5.6000E 00	3.5000E 00	6.4192E-01	3.3319E-05	1.4080E-05	2.0000E-02	6.2189E-01
6.2100E 00	3.5000E 00	2.3090E-01	6.3795E-05	2.5600E-05	4.3469E-02	1.8736E-01
6.3820E 00	3.5000E 00	4•4788E-02	2.6834E-04	1.0622E-04	3.4972E-02	9.5480E-03
7.0770E 00	3.5000E 00	6.3934E-02	1.2660E-04	4.7590E-05	3.5574E-02	2.8233E-02
8.7810E 00	3.5000E 00	1.2329E-01	1.1234E-03	3.7910E-04	3.1170E-02	9.1000E-02
9.2860E 00	3.5000E 00	1.1076E-01	1.6364E-04	5.3700E-05	3.5600E-02	7.5000E-02
9.7300E 00	3.5000E 00	2.6905E-01	5.3028E-05	1.7000E-05	3.2000E-02	2.3700E-01
1.0180E 01	3.5000E 00	1.0056E-01	6.1898E-05	1.9400E-05	3.8000E-02	6.2500E-02
1.0800F 01	3.5000E 00	9.3509E-01	9.3332E-05	2.8400E-05	6.7000F-02	8.6800E-01
1.1666E 01	3.5000E 00	4.7277E-02	6.2744E-04	1.8370E-04	4.0400E-02	6.2500E-03
1.2396E 01	3.5000E 00	6.3262E-02	1.2622E-03	3.5850E-04	3.4500E-02	2.7500E-02
1.2861E 01	3.5000E 00	1.1955E-01	5.3076E-05	1.4800E-05	3.3500E-02	8.6000E-02
1.3275E 01	3.5000E 00	1.5144E-01	3.9350E-05	1.0800E-05	2.8600E-02	1.2280E-01
1.3700F 01	3.5000E 00	I•2394E-01	3.7013E-05	1.0000E-05	3.0400E-02	9.3500E-02
1.3996E 01	3.5000E 00	4.9654E-01	5.3723E-04	1.4360E-04	2.6000E-02	4.7000E-01
1.4544E 01	3.5000E 00	5.6215E-02	I.1517E-04	3.0200E-05	3.5200E-02	2.0900E-02
1.5406E 01	3.5000E 00	7.8837E-02	2.3707E-04	6.0400E-05	3.5300E-02	4.3300E-02
1.6088E UI	3.5000E 00	5.0361E-02	3.6099E-04	9.0000E-05	3.1383E-02	1.8617E-02
1.6667E 01	3.5000E 00	1.3327E-01	2.7300E-04	6-6870E-05	3.2105E-02	1.0089E-01
1.8052E 01	3.5000E 00	1.6038E-01	3.8451E-04	9.0500E-05	3.5000E-02	1.2500E-01
1.8960E 0I	3.5000E 00	1.0512E-01	1.1582E-04	2.6600E-05	5.0000E-02	5.5000E-02
1.9297E 0I	3.5000E 00	9.8194E-02	3.1936E-03	7.2700E-04	3.4821E-02	6.0179E-02
2.0130E 01	3.5000E 00	2.4009E-01	8.7714E-05	I.9550E-05	1.3910E-02	2.2609E-01
2.0200E 01	3.5000E 00	5.0013E-02	1.3034E-05	2.9000E-06	4.9280E-02	7.2000E-04
2.0610E 01	3.5000E 00	8.4191E-02	1.9117E-04	4.2110E-05	4.0485E-02	4.3515E-02
2.1072E 01	3.5000E 00	7.3503E-02	1.5027E-03	3.2736E-04	4.0342E-02	3.1658E-02

Table III (Cont'd)

Resonance Borgy (ey)	Resonance Spin	Total Width (ey)	Gamma-N (ey)	Gamma-N- Nought (eV)	Gamma- Gamma (eV)	Gamma~₽ (ey)
2.2939E 01	3.5000E 00	7.5436E-02	4.3584E-04	9°1000E-05	3.2670E-02	4, 2330E-02
2.3412E 01	3.5000E 00	3.2204E-02	7.0372E-04	1.4544E-04	2.6500E-02	5.0000E-03
2.3629E 01	3.5000E 00	2.2586E-01	8.5577E-04	1.7605E-04	4.3000E-02	1.8200E-01
2.4245E UI	3.5000E 00	5.8268E-02	2.6835E-04	5.4500E-05	3.1000E-02	2.7000E-02
2.4370E 01	3.5000E 00	1.0015E-01	1.4958E-04	3.0300E-05	3.5000E-02	6.5000E-02
2.5200E 01	3.5000E 00	8.5068E-01	6.7624E-C4	1.3471E-04	2.5000E-02	8.2500E-01
2.5590E 01	3.5000E 00	3.8556E-01	5.6455E-04	1.1160E-04	2.5000E-02	3.6000E-01
2.6480E 01	3.5000E 00	1.9248E-01	4.7599E-04	9.2500E-05	3.2000E-02	1.6000E-01
2.6740E 01	3.5000E 00	2.5009E-01	8.5685E-05	1.6570E-05	3.0000E-02	2.2000E-01
2.7149E 01	3.5000E 00	1.1559E-01	8.5139E-05	1.6340E-05	4.2000E-02	7.3500E-02
2.7796E 01	3.5000E 00	1.2067E-01	6.7447E-04	1.2793E-04	3.2000E-02	8.8000E-02
2.8090E 01	3.5000E 00	6.5031E-02	3.1164E-05	5.8800E-06	4.0000E-02	2.5000E-02
2.8351E 01	3.5000E 00	1.4919E-01	1.8854E-04	3.5410E-05	3.1700E-02	1.1730E-01
2.8710E 01	3.5000E 00	1.3004E-01	4.5009E-05	8.4000E-06	5.0000E-02	8.0000E-02
2.9644E_01	3.5000E 00	6.1177E-02	1.7744E-04	3.2590E-05	3.7000E-02	2.4000E-02
3.0590E UI	3.5000E 00	1.5523E-01	2.2732E-04	4.1100E-05	4.5094E-02	1.0990E-01
3.0860E 01	3.5000E 00	5.4532E-02	5.3235E-04	9.5830E-05	3.52 6 9E-02	1.8731E-02
3.2070E 01	3.5000E 00	9.9823E-02	1.8233E-03	3.2197E-04	3.7724E-02	6.0276E-02
3.3520E 01	3.5000E 00	5.6859E-02	1.8595E-03	3.2117E-04	3.1861E-02	2.3139E-02
3.4370E 01	3.5000E 00	8.7253E-02	2.2527E-03	3.8425E-04	4.3160E-02	4.1840E-02
3.4850E 01	3.5000E 00	1.1610E-01	1.0977E-03	1.8595E-04	3.8247E-02	7.6753E-02
3.5187E 01	3.5000E 00	1.0350E-01	3.5004E-03	5.9010E-04	3.1402E-02	6.8598E-02
3.5300E 01	3.5000E 00	6.9157E-01	1, 5675E-03	2.•6383E-04	4.0000E-02	6.5000E-01
3.6400E 01	3.5000F 00	1.5401E 00	1.1994E-04	1.9880E-05	4.0000E-02	1.5000E 00
3.7500E 01	3.5000E 00	1.5402F 00	I-6638E-04	2.7170E-05	4.0000E-02	1.5000E 00
3.8300E 01	3.5000E 00	3.0834E-01	3.3592E-04	5.4280E-05	4.2191E-02	2.6581E-01
3.9410E 01	3.5000E 00	9.5523E-02	2+5233E-03	4.0195E-04	3.4488E-02	5.8512E-02
3.9900E 01	3.5000E 00	1.5024E-01	2.3637E-04	3.7420E-05	3.3177E-02	1.1682E-01
4.0536E 01	3.5000E 00	2.0938E-01	3.8029E-04	5.9730E-05	3.4323E-02	1.7468E-01
4.1350E 01	3.5000E 00	4.4564E-01	6.4484E-04	1.0028E-04	4.5000E-02	4.0000E-01
4.1590E 01	3.5000E 00	1.6522E-01	2.2391E-04	3.4720E-05	3.0907E-02	1.3409E-01
4.1873E 01	3.5000E 00	4.1233E-02	1.2325E-03	1.9047E-04	2.8951E-02	1.1049E-02
4.2230E 01	3.5000E 00	l.4545E-01	4.4722E-04	6.8820E-05	4.8240E-02	9.6760E-02
4.2690E 01	3.5000E 00	6.1345E-02	3.4518E-04	5.2830E-05	4.4322E-02	1.6678E-02
4.3398E 01	3.5000E 00	7.0754E-02	7.5449E-04	1.1453E-04	4.5880E-02	2.4120E-02
4.3900E 01	3.5000E 00	1.1020E-01	2.0096E-04	3.0330E-05	4.1036E-02	6.8964E-02
4.3970E 01	3.5000E 00	2.5034E-01	3.4547E-04	5.2100E-05	1.7309E-02	2.3269E-01
4.4600E 01	3.5000E 00	I.*7584E-01	8.3866E-04	1.2558E-04	4.5978E-02	1.2902E-01
4.4950E 01	3.5000E 00	5.3576E-01	7.5700E-04	1.1291E-04	3.0739E-02	5.0426E-01

Table III (Cont'd)

Gamma-F (eV)	1. 6000E-01 1. 2000E-01 2. 0000E-01 1. 2000E-01 1. 0500E-01 3. 2000E-01 6. 0937E-02 2. 4000E-01 8. 0000E-01 8. 5000E-01 8. 5000E-01 8. 5000E-02 1. 3400E-02 1. 3400E-02 6. 9100E-02 6. 9100E-02 2. 7400E-02
Gamma- Gamma (ey)	 4.0000E-02 5.0000E-02 3.5000E-02 3.1000E-02 3.1000E-02 3.2000E-02 3.2000E-02 4.0000E-02 4.1000E-02 4.1000E-02 5.2000E-02 5.2000E-02
Gamma-N- Nought (ey)	8.5930E-05 3.2364E-04 2.8641E-04 3.4430E-05 3.0694E-04 4.3000E-05 3.1604E-04 1.0246E-04 1.5672E-04 1.3854E-04 1.3854E-04 1.3854E-04 1.3854E-04 1.3854E-04 1.3854E-04 1.2200E-05 7.7200E-05
Gamma-N (eV)	7.1530E-04 2.7156E-03 2.4091E-03 2.4091E-03 2.6115E-04 2.6115E-04 2.6115E-04 2.7287E-04 1.3621E-04 1.3621E-04 1.2245E-04 1.2245E-04 1.2245E-04 1.2245E-04 1.0732E-04 1.2245E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.2245E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-03 1.2245E-04 1.0732E-04 1.2245E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-03 1.2245E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04 1.0732E-04
Total Width (eV)	2.00726-01 1.72726-01 2.37416-01 1.60296-01 1.38616-01 3.60376-01 1.01676-01 2.90896-01 1.16116-01 1.129966-01 1.48226-01 1.48226-01 1.74846-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01 1.32046-01004604600000000000000000000000000
Resonance Spin	3.5000E 00 3.5000E 00
Resonance Energy (eV)	6.9293E 01 7.0404E 01 7.0750E 01 7.1610E 01 7.2390E 01 7.2390E 01 7.4544E 01 7.4544E 01 7.5541E 01 7.5541E 01 7.5541E 01 7.9672E 01 8.0357E 01 8.1434E 01 8.1434E 01 8.3590E 01 8.3590E 01 8.3590E 01

Table III (Cont'd)

Table IV

Version III 0.2233 0.4063 1.8435 0.4454 1.4755 0.5254 0.6628 0.4648 0.6307 0.5214 0.4316 0.4026 0.3968 ENDF/B 0.1026 0.5718 0.6125 ಶ ORNL-RPI 0.4674 1.4872 0.6689 0.4756 0.5345 0.4243 0.4090 0.2187 0.4062 1.8435 0.6171 0.5438 0.6480 0.1043 0.5405 0.4405 0.036 Version III ENDF/B ∫o_cdE/E (b) 4.66 15.78 13.38 17.75 4.44 4.44 11.30 5.28 3.18 6.47 4.22 8.88 4.51 6.06 2.40 104.5 ORNL-RPI 0.033 15.70 13.78 17.47 4.51 11.34 5.25 3.27 6.39 8.94 4.58 5.89 2.35 0.28 4.11 4.67 104.3 Version III ENDF/B 8.55 30.03 12.03 8.45 11.36 8.65 14.04 31.00 28.97 7.38 11.49 14.08 5.96 0.63 170.6 0.038 GEEL 29.58 11.47 8.33 16.26 10.77 8.27 13.56 5.68 0.63 13.71 <u>e</u> 0.026 SACLAY σ_εdE/E 16.99 11.19 13.75 8.60 8.60 5.91 5.91 ORNL-RPI 0.020 31.30 29.24 7.61 11.50 29.47 11.75 8.29 8.29 16.95 11.05 13.80 8.57 8.41 13.87 5.73 0.63 169.1 between fit and data set. RMS fractional difference (Lethargy) Width 0.5 0.5 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 4.41 0.04 0.5 0.5 0.5 Interval (eV) 0.532-0.876 0.876-1.44 6.48-10.68 10.68-13.7 17.6-22.6 22.6-29.0 29.0-37.3 37.3-47.9 1.44-2.38 13.7-17.6 2.38-3.93 3.93-6.48 47.9-61.4 61.4-78.9 78.9-82.0 Energy 1 - 82

COMPARISON OF RESONANCE INTEGRALS FOR U-235 IN GAM INTERVALS

TABLE V

			$\int \sigma_{T} dE$ (b	-ev)		$\int \sigma_{\rm T} \frac{dE}{E}$ (b)
Energy Interval (ev)	Width (Lethargy)	Shore	Michaudon	END F/B III	Shore	Michaudon	ENDF/B
0.532 - 0.876	0.5	28.38		27.91	41.24		41.00
.876 - 1.44	0.5	48.12		46.26	43.33		42.02
1.44 - 2.38	0.5	35.20	32.28	33.63	18.51	17.14	17.85
2.38 - 3.93	0.5	74.15	70.24	70.57	22.93	21.78	21.87
3.93 - 6.48	0.5		166.68	169.87		29.30	29.75
6.48 - 10.68	0.25		439.44	420.66		50.89	48.75
10.68 - 13.7	0.25		407.66	398.29		33.47	32.69
13.7 - 17.6	0.25		247.81	236.89		16.17	15.46
17.6 - 22.6	0.25		657.82	626.86		33.36	31.78
22.6 - 29.0	0.25		498.15	491.30		19.89	19.62
29.0 - 37.3	0.25		885.19	883.80		26.20	26.14
37.3 - 47.9	0.25		693.12	686.82		16.40	16.24
47.9 - 61.4	0.25		1278.9	1271.2		23.64	23.49
61.4 - 78.9	0.25		811.87	824.75		11.48	11.69
78.9 - 82.0	0.04		109.31	112.03		1.36	. 1.39

Total Cross Section Resonance Integral

		*
.532	-	82

RMS fractional difference

.040 .028

.026

.034

385.65

379.74

* Using Shore data below 1.44 eV, Michaudon data above.





Fig. 1

Normalization comparisons of the three fission data sets. Partial resonance integrals were computed for each data set, using energy intervals whose end points fell in valleys between resonances. The histograms represent ratios between corresponding integrals for the indicated pairs of data sets.



Fig. 2

Curve used to renormalize the Blons fission data. The histogram represents ratios of incremental integrals from Blons data to corresponding quantities from the renormalized deSaussure data. The curve is a least squares fit to the histogram, using the polynominal

$$\sigma = \sigma (1.736 - 4.7457 \times 10^{-2} \text{E} + 1.0971 \times 10^{-3} \text{E}^2 - 1.0858 \times 10^{-5} \text{E}^3 + 3.8965 \times 10^{-8} \text{E}^4).$$

. . .

APPENDIX A

PLOTS OF THE FITS TO THE PRINCIPAL DATA SETS

Total, fission, and capture cross sections for U-235. The dashed lines represent the contributions of the single level resonance parameters submitted for ENDF/B, Version III. The solid lines represent the complete parameters and smooth file. The fit begins at 1 eV. The curves have been resolution- and Doppler-broadened to match the conditions under which the various sets of data were collected. Shown are the total cross section data of Cao⁽⁴⁾, and DeSaussure⁽¹⁾, and capture data of DeSaussure⁽¹⁾. In addition the total cross section data of Shore and Sailor⁽⁵⁾ are shown below 1.8 eV.

















































APPENDIX B

ESTIMATES OF ERROR

Although ACSAP will, upon command, calculate and print out the value of Chi -squared for a given run, it does not produce a complete error summary. A thorough error analysis is beyond the scope of the present effort. Consequently, the following error estimates are based upon a variety of considerations, combined in a none too rigorous manner.

We discussed differences in energy scales earlier. The uncertainty in energy scale is estimated to be about 0.1%, representing the difference between the deSaussure and European energy scales. The error in locating the resonance energy in the centroid of the experimental points representing the resonance is estimated at 0.010 eV. Because of interference in the fission channels, the centroids of the total, fission, and capture peaks may all be located at different energies. We chose the total peak as representing the best compromise position, but the capture peak is probably nearer to the true resonance energy. We assign an uncertainty of 0.020 eV in F_0 to represent this interference effect. The overall uncertainty in E_0 is thus dependent upon energy, but averages about 0.050 eV.

The fission and capture partial widths should be good to 10%. This figure is estimated from considerations of observable differences in the fits. The neutron widths, which were adjusted to make a compromise between the total and partial cross section data, have errors determined essentially by this normalization uncertainty. The discrepancies were as high as 7% in the region 8-16 eV.

From the incremental resonance integrals displayed in Tables IV and V we have calculated root mean square fractional differences between the fit and the various data sets. These values appear in the tables, and indicate an *The quantity calculated is $\left[\frac{1}{N}\sum_{i=1}^{N}\left(\frac{F_i - d_i}{d_i}\right)^2\right]^{1/2}$, where the F_i are from the fit and the d_i from the indicated set of data.

average fit of about 3½%. Although this figure includes the effects of the normalization discrepancy discussed in the preceding paragraph, it does not fully include normalization errors. Neither does it face up to the fact that the residuals may not have a normal distribution. Making some allowances for these factors, we estimate the overall accuracy of the fit to be 5%, at a 67% confidence level. -